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Corporate Profile
DR

China Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd. A& & B ERI%E
R AEPR A F] (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
were established in 1999.

The shares (the “Shares”) of the Company have been listed on the main
board (the “Main Board”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 12 October 2004 (Stock code: 1194).

The Group is a leading and the largest non state-owned Chinese gold
mining company in the The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in
terms of production volume in 2013 with a particular focus on the central
and western regions of the PRC. The Group currently owns five operating
gold mines located in the central, western and northern regions of the
PRC, namely Jinxing Mine and Luanling Mine in Henan Province, Mojiang
Mine and Hengyi Mine in Yunnan Province, and Yongfeng Mine in Inner
Mongolia, with total gold resources of approximately 7.4 million ounces.
The Group produced 124 Koz and 146 Koz of gold for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2013, respectively.

JINXING GOLD MINE IN HENAN

Jinxing Mine is currently our largest mine in terms of total gold resources.
Jinxing Mine is located in Luanchuan County, Henan Province. It is
approximately 6 km from the regional town of Baitu and approximately
110 km southwest of Luoyang City, Henan Province. It has Australasian
Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore
Reserves (“JORC code”) and its equivalent gold resources of 79.9 tonnes
(2,569 Koz) with average grade of 4.6g/t.

Exploration activities first took place in 1956 and production commenced
in 1982.

Jinxing Mine consists of four mining areas, namely Xingshuya mining
area, Xingxingyin mining area, Moshigou mining area and Xiaonangou-
Houmusi mining area. Aggregate mining area under the mining license is
approximately 22.2 km?,
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

Jinxing Mine is located at the junction between the southern margin
of the Qinling complex structural zone and the Xinhuaxia Taihang
uplift zone. Jinxing Mine is a polymetallic mine. The majority of the
mineralisation is contained within fresh rock due to the limited weathering
profile in the region. Two styles of mineralisation are identified, namely
pyrite bearing that contains silver, lead and copper in addition to the
gold mineralisation, and lead/gold bearing that is composed of lead and
gold mineralisation with minor silver. Mineralisation occurs within quartz
veins which are located within fracture zones to form stock work style
deposits. Ten vein groups have been identified within the mining area.

LUANLING GOLD MINE IN HENAN

Luanling Mine is located in Luanchuan County, Henan Province. It
is approximately 40 km from Jinxing Mine. It has JORC code gold
resources of 63.4 tonnes (2,039 Koz) with average grade of 3.2g/t.

Exploration activities first took place in the 1950s and production
commenced in 1989.

Luanling Mine consists of two mining areas with different characteristics
of mineralisation, namely the Northern mining area and the Southern
mining area. Aggregate mining area under the mining license is
approximately 9 km?.

Luanling Mine is located at the junction between the southern margin
of the Qinling complex structural zone and the Xinhuaxia Taihang uplift
zone. Mineralised zones in two mining areas are defined. The major
gold zones include nine veins. The mineralised material is dominated by
pyrite, secondarily marcasite, with small amount of galena and altaite (lead
minerals). The major gangue minerals include quartz, albite, sericite and
chlorite. The gold minerals include electrum, with a little calaverite and
petzite.
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Corporate Profile
R

MOJIANG GOLD MINE IN YUNNAN

Mojiang Mine, located in Pu’er City, Yunnan Province is currently our
largest mine in terms of gold production. It is approximately 300 km
southwest of Kunming City, Yunnan Province. It has JORC code gold
resources of 19.2 tonnes (621 Koz) with average grade of 1.4g/t.

Exploration activities first took place in 1945 and production commenced
in 1976.

Mojiang Mine is located in the Ailaoshan Fold Belt of the San Jiang
Metamorphic Fold System.

Mojiang Mine holds one mining license covering an area of approximately
7.2 km?.

Apart from gold deposit in Mojiang Mine, there is also rich nickel metal.
The nickel ore bodies occur parallel to the gold ore bodies and belong to
a typical hydrothermal type that are mainly sulfides.

HENGYI MINE IN YUNNAN

Hengyi Mine is located in Zhenyuan County, Yunnan Province. It is
approximately 380 km southwest of Kunming City, Yunnan Province. It
has JORC code gold resources of 52.3 tonnes (1,679 Koz) with average
grade of 2.7g/t.

Hengyi Mine is located between the Mojiang-Jinping Fold Belt and the
Ailaoshan Fold Belt of the San Jiang Metamorphic Fold System.

Exploration activities first took place in the 1950s and production
commenced in 2003.

Hengyi Mine consists of two mining areas, namely Bianfushan mining
area and Shangzhai mining area. Total area under the mining licences is
approximately 9.1 km?. It also holds four exploration licences in adjacent
areas with aggregate area of approximately 36.7 km?.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

YONGFENG GOLD MINE IN INNER MONGOLIA

The Yongfeng Mine is located in Honghuagou, Inner Mongolia. It
currently holds seven mining licenses covering a total mining area of
0.92 km®. The mine is an underground mine located in Honghuagou
mineralisation belt of Inner Mongolia that has relatively high gold grade.
It has gold resources of 16.4 tonnes (529 Koz) with average grade of
9.50/t.
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Locations of Our Mines
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Gold production increased by 18%
to 4.5 tonnes (146 Koz). Completed
Mojiang Mine’s Mineral Resource
and Ore Reserve Statements in
accordance with the JORC code.
JORC code resources of Mojiang
Mine are 19.2 tonnes (a 25%
increase) and reserves are 12.2
tonnes (maiden reserves). Revenue
decreased by 4% to HKD$1,562
million, EBITDA decreased by 11%
to HK$1,005 million, the effect of
increase of production was offset by
the significant drop of gold price.
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Financial Highlights
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD
PREEEBERERERLT
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Major Financial Highlight FENBBEBERE
Financial Data Summary FY 2013 FY 2012 Movement %
MREERE 2013 & 20124 B4t %
Gold output (thousand ounces) HeEE(THA) 146 124 18%
Revenue (HK$’000) Wz (F8T) 1,562,409 1,626,023 (4%)
Gross profit (HK$’000) EM(FET) 857,160 1,039,325 (18%)
EBITDA (HK$’000) BT iER
B (%) 1,004,645 1,131,328 (11%)
Net profit (HK$’000) w A (FET) 181,383 445,078 (59%)
Total assets (HK$’000) wEE(THEL) 11,716,331 9,305,986 26%
Total debts* (HK$’000) w@EE (F8T) 4,623,597 1,841,418 151%
Cash and bank balances* He MIRTTHEER
(HK$’000) (F%&71T) 980,625 184,653 431%
Net debts* (HK$’000) FEIE (FHT) 3,642,972 1,656,765 120%
Total equity (HK$’000) @Rz (TAT) 5,922,847 5,605,068 6%
Notes*: PR&E™

—  Total debts are bank and other borrowings and convertible bonds.

—  Cash and bank balances include pledged bank deposit.
— Net debts are total debts less cash and bank balances.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Dear Shareholders,

First and foremost, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our
shareholders for your continuous support and trust in us as we grow to
become a fast growing, highly efficient, low cost and committed gold
producer in China. Our deepest appreciation also goes to all of our
employees and management, especially our directors — we would not be
where we are today without your hard work dedicated to the Group.

During 2013, the Group continued with its goal of expanding the
operations and increasing production. We are very pleased with the
operational progress, especially with our Mojiang Mine and Hengyi Minge,
production of which increased by 45% and 269% respectively compared
to 2012. As a result, the Group achieved a record production of 4.5
tonnes (146 Koz) in 2013, which represents an 18% increase compared
to the same period of 2012 (3.8 tonnes, 124 Koz).

With regard to exploration activities, the most notable achievement is
that independent technical consultant — RungePinkcockMinarco (“RPM?),
together with the assistance from our technical and operation teams
of Mojiang Mine has successfully completed the exploration drilling
program, followed by a JORC code Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves
Statement issued by RPM. The Group is very pleased by the outcome,
with JORC code resources increased to 19.2 tonnes (25% increase to its
previous resources) and maiden reserves of 12.2 tonnes.

We are responsible for the local communities, and “Operating in a Safe
and Environmentally Friendly Manner” is our philosophy. We managed
to combine this philosophy with satisfactory operational and financial
performance, and create a win-win situation for the Company and the
communities where our operations are. In 2013, the Group has once
again for the 5th consecutive year received numerous recognitions
and rewards by the local government for being an industry leader in
harmonious mines development.

2013 has seen severe volatility of gold price, and we believe it will still be
influenced by the Federal Reserve’s decisions on the pace and timing of
QE tapering. In the meantime, we expect the worst is behind us because
the severe fluctuation of gold price in 2013 has at least partially digested
the change in monetary policy.
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Looking forward we will continue with our efforts on exploration, organic
expansion as well as cost control in an environmentally friendly manner.
With our growing and profitable mines, a jurisdictionally diverse portfolio
of high-quality gold mines and with the skills and expertise of our
management and employees, the Group is very well positioned to deliver
another successful year 2014 and in the future.

As | reflect back on the successful year 2013 of growing our gold
resources/reserves and production, | realise that our greatest asset is not
the metal in the ground but our team of dedicated, bright, competent
and inspired people. We believe that our employees are the key to the
Group’s growth and success. | would like to thank all members of our
team of the Group. Your remarkable efforts and commitments have
ensured another good year for the Group. We greatly appreciate our
board and shareholders as well, who continue to support and trust in our
efforts.

Sincerely,

Lam Cham
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

Management Discussion and Analysis
BB AR

The Group is one of the largest non state-owned gold mining enterprises in
the PRC and one of the few consolidators in the gold mining industry recognised by
the local governments. The gold mines of which the Group currently has mining rights
are located in Henan, Yunnan and Inner Mongolia.
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KEY HIGHLIGHTS FERBER

e Gold production increased significantly by 18% to 4.5 tonnes (146 o  EoEEAREINN18% E4.5M8(146
Koz) as compared to 3.8 tonnes (124 Koz) in 2012 FHA) MZT—ZF K38

(124 F#&7])

e Completed Mojiang Mine’s Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves ® & JORCIZETTR T 2T S EHTREE
Statement in accordance with the JORC code. JORC code BRENMBEORER - JORCIREER
resources and reserves are 19.2 tonnes (a 25% increase to its IRER19.20F - WER ERE LM
previous resources) and 12.2 tonnes (maiden reserves), respectively 25% ' JORCEE R 12.2WF * BEHRX

WERE

e Revenue decreased by 4% to HK$1,562,409,000 (2012: e Wz 4%Z=1,562,409,000/%8 (=
HK$1,626,023,000). The effect of increase in production was offset T — 4 :1,626,023,000/87T) * ®
by significant drop in gold price B NEEIE T ESEMAIAK K

e Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, and amortisation e B % 37 & # 85 A7 F B & & F 5 D

(“EBITDA”) decreased by 11% to HK$1,004,645,000 (2012: 11% % 1,004,645,000% 7t( = =T
HK$1,131,328,000) compared with last year —=% 1,131,328,000/87L)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN BRI

REVIEW OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the reporting period, the Group achieved a total gold output of
4.5 tonnes (146 Koz), an 18% increase compared to the same period
of 2012 (3.8 tonnes, 124 Koz) as a result of expansion of production
capacity of its Mojiang Mine and Hengyi Mine. Gross profit of HK$857
million, fell 17% year over year. Net profit of the Group was HK$181
million compared to HK$445 million of 2012. Net profit decreased due to
the decline of the gold price, coupled with an increase in finance costs.

GOLD MARKET OUTLOOK

In 2013, the gold market saw 21% growth in demand from consumers
which contrasted with outflows of 881 tonnes from Exchange Traded
Funds (“ETFs”). The net result was that global gold demand in 2013 was
15% lower than that in 2012, with a full year total of 3,756 tonnes.

Consumers around the world bought gold in record amounts in 2013, led
by demand in China and India, with China becoming the world’s biggest
gold market, according to the World Gold Council. In Western markets
consumer demand also remained strong with the United States (“US”), in
particular, having a robust year in the jewellery, gold bar and coin sectors.

Annual global investment in gold bars and coins reached 1,654 tonnes,
up from 1,289 tonnes in 2012, a rise of 28%, being the highest figure
since a decade ago.

For the full year, Chinese and Indian investment in gold bars and coins
was up by 38% and 16%, respectively. Although markets were much
smaller in terms of volume, in the US, gold bar and coin demand was
up 26% to 68 tonnes, and in Turkey it was up 113% to 102 tonnes,
demonstrating solid support on a global basis.
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Meanwhile, demand for jewellery, the other component of consumer
demand, increased by 29% from 519 tonnes to 669 tonnes in China, and
by 11% from 552 tonnes to 613 tonnes in India, reaching 2,209 tonnes
globally, the highest figure since the onset of the financial crisis in 2008.

Federal Reserve decisions on the pace and timing of QE tapering
will continue to influence gold. The slump in gold prices due to the
expectations of tapering implies that the market has at least partially
factored in a change in monetary policy. It is expected that physical
demand trends in the emerging world will largely define gold price
movements in 2014. China alone is absorbing the equivalent of half the
world’s gold mine production. A possible recovery in Indian demand,
should the authorities reduce gold import tariffs, is potentially supportive.

As for the gold supply, efforts to reduce costs by global producers
may help limit production going forward; 2014 output may be below
2013’s record levels according to estimate by World Gold Council. In
China, gold miners are undergoing consolidation process. As indicated
by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (“MIIT”), China
government has reduced over 700 gold producing enterprises at
the end of the Eleventh Five-Year Plan to approximately 600 through
consolidation. By 2015, gold output of large and medium gold
enterprises will take more than 70% of the total gold output in the
country. The growth strategy of the Group is in line with the guidance of
the MIIT, which will provide policy and regulatory support for the Group’s
on-going expansion through further merger and acquisition, and to
increase gold resources and reserves base.

cPM
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Management Discussion and Analysis
IEE __’LHHH& $ﬁ'

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the reporting period, gold production of Hengyi Mine and Mojiang
Mine has increased significantly, while production of Jinxing Mine and
Luanling Mine was relatively stable as compared to 2012. Total gold

E 3 eI

RBEHE BRI ISENES
EEAREN MERSBENEBSEN
EER_T-—FHLAUEHEE - &

production was 4.5 tonnes (146 Koz), an 18% increase from 2012, Gold ©MREE /458 (146 TH 7))  W=F
production by mine is as follows: —ZFHEMN18% - EeBEESESNT ¢
Au metal Jinxing Luanling Mojiang Hengyi Yongfeng
Mine Mine Mine Mine Mine
cEB SHRETE BRESHE BTISHE 15 35 & 8 KELTE
2018 —ZT—=F%
Kg = 1,335 1,012 1,574 362 237
Koz T#7A 43 33 51 11 8
2012 —ZT—=fF
Kg = 1,407 1,028 1,090 98" 237
Koz TF#7] 45 33 35 & 8

* production since the acquisition by the Group

Henan Jinxing Mine

Henan Jinxing Mine is located approximately 6 km from the regional town
of Baitu and approximately 110 km southwest of Luoyang City, Henan
Province. It is the largest mine in terms of gold resources of the Group. It
is an underground mine and consists with two areas, namely Jinxing area
and Xiepojing area. Gold production started since 1982, while exploration
activities commenced as early as 1956. The Group acquired Jinxing Mine
in 2010. Ten vein groups have been identified within the mining area, with
similar orientation, size and shape. The variation of overall continuity of
the thickness and grade of the vein is also relatively consistent, which
suggested good potential for further resources expansion. Jinxing Mine
has received the environmental approval and safety approval for its
new tailings yard and has started the construction work. It has JORC
code and its equivalent gold resources of 79.9 tonnes (2,569 Koz) with
average grade of 4.6g/t. Gold production in 2013 was 1.3 tonnes (43
Koz) which remained consistent with that of 2012.
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Henan Luanling Mine

Luanling Mine is located in Luanchuan County, Henan Province, 40 km
away from Jinxing Mine. It is composed of Northern underground mining
site and Southern open-pit and underground mining site and is contained
within a single mining licence with an area of 9 km’. Exploration activities
commenced in 1950s and small-scale production started in 1989. The
Group acquired the mine in 2010 and realised full scale production in
2012. It has JORC code gold resources of 63.4 tonnes (2,039 Koz)
with average grade of 3.2g/t. Gold production in 2013 was 1 tonne (33
Koz) which remained consistent with that of 2012. Ongoing exploration
activities are conducted in Luanling, providing high potential for near-term
resource expansion.

Yunnan Mojiang Mine

Mojiang Mine, as the largest mine in terms of production of the Group,
is located in Mojiang County, Pu'er City, Yunnan Province, approximately
300 km southwest of the provincial capital — Kunming. It lies on the
famous Mojiang-Jinping and Ailaoshan Fold, implying favourable geology
attributions. Exploration activities began in 1945 and production started
in 1976. The Group acquired the Mojiang Mine in 2010.

During the reporting period, the Group has significantly improved the
production efficiency at Mojiang Mine by upgrading mine site facilities
and reconstructing the Mojiang processing plant, which included tailings
regrinding conveyer project, cyanidation plant renovation project,
carbon conveyer project, tailrace re-adsorption project, processing plant
anticorrosive coating project as well as phase 2 pit mouth rehabilitation
project. In addition, the Group has also started the early works of
underground mining.

According to the latest JORC code Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves
statement, the mine has JORC code resources of 19.2 tonnes (621 Koz)
with an average grade of 1.4g/t, reserves of 12.2 tonnes (392 Koz) of
Au metal with an average grade of 1.3g/t. Mojiang Mine produced 1.6
tonnes (51 Koz) of gold, a 45% increase as compared with 1.1 tonnes (35
Koz) in 2012.

cPM
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Yunnan Hengyi Mine

Hengyi Mine is located in the southwest of Yunnan Province. It lies
approximately 380 km southwest from Kunming. It holds two mining
licenses, namely Shangzhai and Bianfushan.

Hengyi Mine is located between the Mojiang-Jinping Fold Belt and the
Ailaoshan Fold Belt of the San Jiang Metamorphic Fold System. The San
Jiang Metamorphic System is situated on the southwest margin of the
Yangzi Platform and the northeast margin of the Simao Block between
the Honghe and Amojiang Faults.

Since the Group’s acquisition of Hengyi Mine in October 2012, the
Group has been working on ramping up its production capacity. Heap
leaching has been practised for several years at the mine. The Group
has significantly increased its recovery rate and operating efficiency by
utilising its gold operation experience and enlarged its heap leaching
scale. It has JORC code resources of 52.3 tonnes (1,679 koz) with an
average grade of 2.7g/t.Total gold production reached 362kg (11 Koz) in
2013, a 269% increase from 2012.

The Group has also started the construction work of a 450t/day
processing plant in preparation for its underground operation.

Inner Mongolia Yongfeng Mine

Yongfeng Mine is an underground mine which was acquired by the
Group in 2009. Yongfeng Mine consists of two mining areas, namely
Lianhuashan mining area and Honghuagou mining area, which are
further divided into seven sub-mining areas. Yongfeng Mine is located
in the middle segment of the northern margin of the North China Plate,
adjacent to the Inner Mongolia Fold Belt in the North. Seven mineralised
veins were identified. The mineralised veins have similar characteristics
with an average width between 1 and 1.5 metre and occur as gold-
bearing quartz veins. It has resources of 16.4 tonnes (529 Koz) with
an average grade of 9.5g/t. The output of Yongfeng Mine in 2013 was
237kg (8 Koz), which was the same as that of 2012.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

GOLD RESOURCES/RESERVES

At the end of year 2013, the Group had total resources of 231.2 tonnes
which is compliant with the JORC code and/or its equivalent. Measured
and indicated resources (inclusive of proved and probable reserves)
were 95.8 tonnes (2012: 91.7 tonnes) and inferred resources were 135.4
tonnes (2012: 138.5 tonnes). The measured and indicated resources
(inclusive of proved and probable reserves) for Jinxing Mine, Luanling
Mine, Mojiang Mine, Hengyi Mine and Yongfeng Mine were 40.4 tonnes,
19.4 tonnes, 15.7 tonnes, 15.0 tonnes and 5.3 tonnes respectively. The
inferred resources for Jinxing Mine, Luanling Mine, Mojiang Mine, Hengyi
Mine and Yongfeng Mine were 39.5 tonnes, 44.0 tonnes, 3.5 tonnes,
37.3 tonnes and 11.1 tonnes respectively. The gold grade ranged from
1.4g to 9.5¢g per ton of resources.

- CPM

FEEEBERERERLA

ETERE HE

RZT—=FFK  KNEBIZIORCIEAE
K,/ SEfELERE H231.20F - fREFE
THERE (BIEEEEMERFE) £95.8
WE(—ZE——F :01.70) M HEHERE
135.4M3( —ZF — —4F : 138.5) - &
TR HELE RBILE EXSE
RxEeBENRARIEHERE (RIEE
FEMEHES) DB A240.40F - 19.4 W -
1578 ~ 15.0M8 K2 5.3MF - & &7 -« £
BEoR RTSE BB IoKESE
BT EIRE 5 Bl A39.5W8  44.0M8 -
350 37.3MERA1AME - &4 RN TF
RERENE1.472E 9557 °

Updated mineral resources table" FHREEERR"
Au Metal (t) Au Metal (koz)
&8 (W) 2B (T&H7)
Measured + Measured +
Indicated®  Inferred Total Indicated® Inferred Total
A + R +
@ B a5t 2@ i3] =X
Jinxing Mine ST 40.4 39.5 79.9 1,299 1,270 2,569
Luanling Mine HESE 19.4 44.0 63.4 624 1,415 2,039
Mojiang Mine RITIENE 15.7 3.5 19.2 508 113 621
Hengyi Mine B e 15.0 37.3 52.3 480 1,199 1,679
Yongfeng Mine sk E&1E 5.3 11.1 16.4 172 357 529
Total 45 95.8 135.4 231.2 3,083 4,354 7,437

(1) All the mines’ resources and reserves are JORC code compliant and/or its

equivalent.

(2)  Measured and Indicated resources are inclusive of proved and probable

gold reserves.

(1) R LBHERFELBIORCIFER, ~
LHAFLITE

0 REREHEFEOHELR
f8 -
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ANNUAL REVIEW - EXPLORATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE FEMEE -#MHERERZZRE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group continued its exploration work in all of its 5 mines, and in ~ AEBERHE IS5 ERLFELEHET
total has completed trenching of approximately 69,000m and diamond — F * Tk Itk TI2E 769,000 K - &R
drilling of approximately 23,000m. The most notable achievement is ~ LTi2E4923,000K o &7BE HIPKE AL
that independent technical consultant-RungePincockMinarco (‘RPM”),  $:1i7 & & RungePincockMinarco ([ RPMJ)
together with the assistance from our technical and operation teams of &I SERM R LEBZONHEIT - B
Mojiang Mine has successfully completed the exploration and drilling #1525 28 )T & 1% & $& 1§ 12 28 B H U 48
program in 2013, followed by a JORC code Mineral Resources and R + I F]3 JORC iF & = & R B & 4
Ore Reserves Statement issued by RPM. Details of the exploration and =3k o #IFERERZTEFIBLOT ¢
infrastructure construction work are as below:

Jinxing Mine

1) Exploration activities
L {AE7 S )

18

i) Exploration area and size

b PRI e S B m A

i) Exploration project
BRI A2

i) No. of drillholes

B ERRLE A

iv) Average size of drillholes

BB AN

v) Average depth of drillholes
BRI TRE

Development/construction activities

WERR ERIH

i) Area

e[ 2 7

i) Infrastructure construction

Jinxing (5km?)
SEGFEHFRE)

Trenches (27,956m) ;
diamond drilling (15,121m)
TR (27,956 5K ) -

R (15,121 K)

2 drilling spots of each of

41 mine mouths, 100 drillholes
Ha1{@0 - HEHRA
g2 & T EmE - 100 &L

Trenching of 2.2*2m;
Diameter of drillholes of
75mm and 33mm
2.2 K -

B EE75=2KM33=ZK

151m
151K

Jinxing

G

Development of mine mouths No.
18,28,19,3,Xingshuya,Moshigou,
Houmusi, Qiaogou,

Xiaobeigou tunnels, etc.

1851 ~ 2841 ~ 1941 ~ 341
B - ERE - FEF - BE -
MEBSERBERTE

Xiepojing (0.05km?)
R H (0.05FHRE)

Trenches
(5,333m)
LR
(5,333K)

4 drilling spots of each of
4 mine mouths
4@ O
FELT O 19 4 @ TIEE

Trenching of 2.2*2m
i 2.2*2 3K

N/A
NER

Xiepojing
AR

Development of the
main tunnel of Xiepojing,
extension of slope mine
R ERTIENR
AT R



Luanling Mine

CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

HESH

1) Exploration activities
BEHERES

)

i

i

Exploration area and size

WiREE K EEmE

Exploration project

BEIE

No. of drillholes

EEFRAKAE

iv) Average size of drillholes

2) Development/construction activities

BB IR

BERR EREH

Area

e

Infrastructure construction

EE SRR

South Area (2.7km?)
ME(7FARE)

Trenches (6,660m)
L (6,660 K)

5 drilling points of each of
9 mine mouths
Ho@EmA
BEH A FE5EIER

Trenching of 2.2*2m
P8 2.22 K

South Area
&=

Development of tunnel

No.307,301,309,305,304 and

slope extension project
of tunnel No.301

3074t ~ 301 T ~ 30937 -
3053 * 304 TR ITIE -
301 FTIHARRIHER

North Area (6km?)
tEBFEFRE)

Trenches (10,360m)
4% (10,360 K)

4 drilling spots of each of
24 mine mouths

Ho4 @A -

BE A FH4EIED

Trenching of 2.2*2m
P8 2.22 K

North Area
ib&

Development of tunnel
Dongpo No.100 and 13,
Huichungou

No.201 and No.200,
Wangzhuang No.401
RIL 1005 ~ 1341
1% 201 51~ 20047 -
401 BERIRE
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Yunnan Mojiang Mine EFETILHE
1) Exploration activities

BEHHRES

i) Exploration area and size Open Cut (0.4km?) Underground (3km?)
BhiRIE 8 & E B A BEXRE(04FHRE) HTERE(BFEFRE)

i) Exploration project Diamond drilling (4,206m) Trenches (7,070m)
H)E T2 $BIF (4,2063K) HUER (7,070K)

i) No. of drillholes 40 drillholes 5 drillings spots of each
[mEi-¢7 SRR ¢=! 40 fE & L of 6 mine mouths

HefEmA -

FEOFH5EIEm

iv) Average size of drillholes Diameter of 76mm Trenching of 2.2*2m

B EHROR LK) BIETT75ZXK P38 2.272 3K

v) Average depth of drillholes 105m N/A

EHERRLTFRE 105K A R
Development/construction activities

BERRE BREH

i) Area Open Cut Underground

e BRKR R

i) Infrastructure construction Construction of a four-stage mining 2# bulkhead wall for

EEREER stope to separate the stripping mining junkyard,

and mining area, phase two mine mouth mining

and 10 other heap leaching plants and rehabilitation project

HEAHES - 95 HEE - 2P IZREAETIR -
BRAE - HEMERM101E “HIBFORRRBETR
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

During the reporting period, Mojiang mine completed a series of drilling
program for tailings, leaching pads, open pits and underground areas
designed by RPM. Results of the drilling program were incorporated
into the geological databases that formed the basis for the JORC code
resource and reserve estimate.

In total, RPM reviewed 867 channel samples, 15,349 drill samples and
72 trench samples (in total 16,288 samples) and issued an updated
Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves Statement.

JORC code resources and reserves of Mojiang Mine are 19.2 tonnes
(@ 25% increase to its previous resources) and 12.2 tonnes (maiden
reserves). The Statement of Mineral Resources for the open pit
operation, underground operation, tailings dams and leach pads, as at
31 December 2013, is as follows:

cPM

FEEEBEERERERLF

REREHIRE - 2T BT — £ % A RPM
REHRTE - HER B - BRI M B
EHERIEE - BRIEBEREHAME
HIEE - BJORCIEEEZ RKFEEMATIR
fHEELAE o

RPM #t 2 9 867 & £ 1% 15 & + 15,349 &
EiEsm R 72 B FEE R (A516,288 &
Ko WEEHERENREERREA
HERX -

21BN JORCIEEERRLHEE /R19.2
WE (R E BT ERIEMN25%) K 12.2M8 &
REEHME N_T—=F+-_A=+—
H - BXE- T~ EXE  BRERERS
WIRESRESEHNAT

JORC Cut off Tonnage
Area Classification Grade (g/t) (Mt) Au (g/1) Au Metal (t)
BRAm
EE JORC 78 (%, W) LR @NED) & (53, %) c&E ()
Open Pit Indicated 0.5 3.1 2.5 7.6
BRIE ZH
Inferred 0.5 1.6 1.7 2.7
ido
Grand Total 0.5 4.7 2.2 10.3
Be
Underground Indicated 1 1.8 2.6 4.8
TR |
Inferred 1 0.2 2.2 0.4
HERR
Grand Total 1 2 2.6 5.2
BE
Leach Pad Indicated 0.1 5.4 0.5 2.7
RS 1l
Inferred 0.1 0.9 0.5 0.4
iido
Grand Total 0.1 6.3 0.5 3.1
HBE
Tailings Dam Process Dam Indicated 0.1 0.2 0.7 0.2
EEE BRE 4
Yutang Dam Indicated 0.1 0.5 0.8 0.4
BiERE 1l
Grand Total 0.1 0.7 0.8 0.6
BE
Total Indicated N/A 11 14 15.7
#st 5 TEA
Inferred N/A 2.7 1.3 3.5
biid ] THEA
Grand Total N/A 13.7 1.4 19.2
wme TEA
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The Statement of Ore Reserves for the open pit operation, underground RZ-ZT—=F+=—A=+—H ' BXE -
operation, tailings dams and leach pads, as at 31 December 2013, is as it NE¥ « BIEERMEIIGHIBELHEE

follows: BT :
JORC Cut off Tonnage
Area Classification Grade (g/t) (Mt) Au (g/t) Au Metal (t)
BARm
) JORC 73 (% W) WE (731 cACYA ) S8 (i)
Open Pit Probable 0.5 1.51 3.1 4.6
BRIE i
Underground Probable 1.0 1.95 2.2 4.3
TR RS
Leach Pad Probable 0.4 5.56 0.5 2.7
HIRI5H TR B
Tailings Dam Process Dam Probable 0.4 0.22 0.7 0.2
= EIEES 1L B
Yutang Dam Probable 0.4 0.48 0.8 0.4
BIEE 1L B
Total Probable N/A 9.72 1.3 12.2
et B TEA
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Yunnan Hengyi Mine EMEm TR

Exploration activities

BEHFREE

)  Exploration area and size Shangzhai (7km?)
BRI i R S E A A FRGTFEHFRE)

i) Exploration project Trenches (7,494m) ;
BRIE diamond drilling (3,600m)
LB (7,494 K) -~ $BHR (3,600K)

i) No. of drillholes 5 drilling spots of each
BB RILEE of 8 mine mouths,
36 drillholes
He @A - FEHT A
T 5 ELIEM -
36 fE#EFL
iv) Average size of drillholes Diameter of drillholes of
EEBEORFL RN 75mm, Trenching of 2.2*2m
B EE75mm

i 2.272 K

v) Average depth of drillholes 100m
EERRLTFIORE 100K

Development/construction activities

BERR BREDH

i) Area Shangzhai
[ 4 It

i) Infrastructure construction Development of
HEM R reiER Langnitang’s midpoint of pit

mouths of 1350 and 1400
JRYEIE 1350 HF EX AN 1400 B
ERERIRE
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Yongfeng Mine KEDHE
Exploration activities
EEHFEE

i) Exploration area and size Honghuagou (0.76km?) Lianhuashan (0.17km?)

BRI 5 N S E A MIEE (076 FHRE) B (017 FAHRE)

i) Exploration project Trenches (3,444.4m) Trenches (616.6m)

BRTZ HLER (8444.4K) 4R (616.6 K)

i) No. of drillholes 3 drilling points of each of 2 drilling spots of each

EERRLEE 5 mine mouths of 2 mine mouths

H5ERD - SEL O 2@ A - FEH A

T3 EI(EE F52 BT Em

iv) Average size of drillholes Trenching of 2.2*2m Trenching of 2.2*2m

B EHROR LK) frig2.272 K P38 2.272 3K

Development/construction activities

BERR EREH
i) Area Honghuagou Lianhuashan
B 5 A ALIEA siel
i) Infrastructure construction Development of Daxian area, Development of the
RS iEER vein no.10, vein no.9 main tunnels of
RNEFKE - 105RIKERE no. 4 and no. 6;
OMRIKE BRI reconstruction of vertical

shaft and extension
PUsk ~ NIREREESHEA R
RYITE - BHMEENRER
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

EXPLORATION, DEVELOPMENT AND MINING PRODUCTION
EXPENDITURES

During the year, the Group had capital expenditures of HK$1,318 million
for exploration, development and mining production and entered into
certain significant contracts with certain independent contractors for
provision of exploration and infrastructure development of the Group.
Details of the relevant exploration and infrastructure development work
are set in above section headed “ANNUAL REVIEW — EXPLORATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT”. Details of the Group’s capital
commitments are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group incurred production costs of HK$686
million which included raw materials of HK$66 million, amortisation
and depreciation of HK$335 million, wages and subcontractors’ fees
of HK$198 million, resources compensation fees and taxes of HK$44
million and other miscellaneous mining and processing costs of HK$43
million.

MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL

During the reporting period, there was no major merger, acquisition
or disposal by the Group. In compliance with the Group’s strategy to
retain our position as one of the low-cost producers, we will focus on
identifying and acquiring low cost, high quality, high growth potential gold
projects in central and western China.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the year, the revenue of the Group was approximately
HK$1,562,409,000, representing a decrease of 4% compared to last
year of HK$1,626,023,000. The decrease in revenue was attributable to
the drop in gold price.

Results

During the year, the Group’s EBITDA decreased by 11% to
HK$1,004,645,000 (2012: HK$1,131,328,000) compared with last year.
Net profit of the Group decreased by 59% to HK$181,383,000 (2012:
HK$445,078,000) compared with last year. Net profit decreased due to
the decline of the gold price, coupled with an increase in finance costs.

cPM
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FRAEEERYE  FAEEARED
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T HheERERMAecE BB T - HiH
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HMEA1SEES T BRHBEBRHEN
T8 44 8 8 7 70 2 MR TR ERE K i T AR
A3EEATT o

FRERHE

RBELRE - AEBRBERHBREE
AE)  RNANKEER REKRAEER
Mz KA - NEBSEFTEEHNE
e kRBERE  EE  FERE
ZEEHER -

B iEE R
A

RAFEE - KREBI A %1,562,409,000
BT REFH1,626,023,000 7 7T
4% o WA D EBRNEE VBT -

s g

m==R

RAFE  AEBEBKERES BT E#
AT F) 8 4 1,004,645,0008 L ( — & — —
F :1,131,328,000/8 70 ) * B EF T &
11% o ANEEE F A 181,383,000/8 (=
LT — —4F : 445,078,000 T) * BWEFRE
L59% o HmFHKD - EEAESERRD
IN_EBA TSR ANSE NP R o
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Earnings Per Share

During the year, the earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Company decreased by 66% to HK4.17 cents (2012: HK12.2 cents)
compared with last year.

Selling and Distribution Costs

During the year, the Group’s selling and distribution costs was
HK$13,380,000 (2012: HK$11,917,000), representing an increase of
12% compared with last year.

Administrative Expenses

During the year, the Group’s administrative expenses was
HK$189,362,000 (2012: HK$184,646,000), which was approximate with
last year.

Finance Costs

During the year, the Group’s finance costs was HK$334,510,000 (2012:
HK$218,872,000), representing an increase of 53% compared with last
year. The increase in finance costs was mainly due to interest expenses
incurred on new convertible bonds of the Company issued during the
year. Details of the convertible bonds are set out in note 25(b) to the
financial statements.

During the year, the Group early settled RBI Loan of US$40 million
and agreed with RBI the voluntary surrender premium of the warrants
attached with RBI Loan reduced to US$4,603,000, provided that
any of the warrants will not be exercised at maturity day in August
2014. The Group recognised a loss of early settlement of RBI
loan of HK$32,554,000 and a gain on fair value of the warrants of
HK$26,799,000 during the year. Details of RBI Loan and warrants are set
out in notes 24(a) and 26(a) to the financial statements.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

Deferred Tax

As at 31 December 2013, deferred tax amounted to HK$657,151,000
(2012: HK$675,729,000), which represented the estimated tax effects
of the temporary differences arising from mergers and acquisition of
gold mines by the Group in previous years and was calculated at PRC
income tax rate of 25% on the increase in fair value of mining rights. The
deferred tax liability balance will be subsequently reversed and credited
to the consolidated income statement as a result of tax effect of the
amortisation of the mining rights. Such liabilities were accounted for in
accordance with the accounting principle and therefore no repayment is
required.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash flow of the Group remains healthy. As at 31 December 2013, the
Group’s cash and bank balances (including pledged bank deposits)
were HK$980,625,000 (2012: HK$184,653,000). Net assets were
HK$5,922,847,000 (2012: HK$5,605,068,000) and net current liabilities
were HK$787,814,000 (2012: HK$655,118,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, no share options of the Company were exercised. As
at 31 December 2013, the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 4,350,727,315 shares (2012: 4,350,727,315 shares),
each of HK$0.125.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States dollars,
the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) is of the view that the
Group’s exposure to exchange rate risk is limited.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed approximately 1,100
employees in the PRC and Hong Kong. All employees are remunerated
according to their performance, experience and prevailing industry
practices. Both on-the-job and professional training are provided as
well. The Group provides retirement benefits in the form of Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance to its employees in Hong Kong. The Group
provides defined contribution retirement benefit schemes organised by
the relevant local government authorities in the PRC to its employees in
the PRC.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES

The Group has implemented a share option scheme to reward eligible
employees according to their individual performance. Through dedication
and efforts of our management and employees, we aim to maximise
the value of our shareholders, investors, management, and employees.
Details of the share option scheme granted to the Group’s employees
are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

PRODUCTION SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We operate in a responsible manner to ensure the health and safety
of our employees and the communities in which we operate. We are
committed to meeting applicable legal requirements and where possible
seek to implement leading industry standards in our operations. We have
established a dedicated safety and environment enhancement team that
is responsible for the occupational health and safety of our mines and
operations.

We are subject to various PRC laws and regulations with respect to the
prevention and treatment of occupational diseases, the prevention of
worksite accidents and the handling of industrial injuries. Production
safety permits have been obtained for our mines.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

We have adopted a comprehensive set of internal occupational health
and safety policies for our mines. We conduct staff training, review
internal safety procedures, carry out regular on-site safety inspections
and continuously monitor the implementation of safety policies.
Protective equipment and clothing are regularly provided to our mine
personnel, and we regularly check proper usage of such equipment. In
addition, each of our mines has been equipped with a real-time visual
monitoring system to monitor mine operation and safety. We have also
set up an inspection and detection system in the explosive warehouses
in each of our mines to provide comprehensive protection to the usage
and security of daily explosives.

We require our third-party contractors to possess requisite production
safety licences and relevant qualifications for the work they contract from
us and to undertake appropriate safety measures.

We have been in compliance with all relevant PRC laws and regulations
regarding occupational health and safety in all material respects. We
have not had any material accident involving death or personal injury at
any of the mines operated by us.

RELATIONSHIP WITH GOVERNMENT AND AWARDS

The Group has established and maintained good relationships with the
local government where the mines are located.

In July 2012, the Group signed the cooperation framework agreement
on mineral resources exploration and development with the local
government of Yunnan Province. According to the agreement, with
the local government’s strong support and assistance on exploration
development and consolidation of gold resources, the Group will have
the priority rights to access to the gold mining assets in the region.
Moreover, the local government will provide support on infrastructure,
including power, water and logistics.

In 2011, the Group also signed the similar framework agreement with
local government of Henan Province. According to the agreement,
the local government will provide full support in terms of the Group’s
consolidation of precious metal resource sector in the region. The group
is also subject to the subsidy policy tailored for foreign investment as well
as the favourable policy for land acquisition and other approvals.
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Following the various awards granted to Jinxing Mine, Luanling Mine
and Mojiang Mine in 2012, the Group was again granted a number of
provincial and local government awards in 2013. Yunnan Government
granted the Group’s Mojiang Mine with the award of Top 10 Foreign
Investment Company as well as Outstanding Privately-Owned Enterprise
(“BFEREMDE"), Trust-worthy Enterprise (“<F{E12%”), Top 10 Tax-
paying Enterprise (“TZE#T105812%"). Mojiang Mine was also
rewarded as Yunnan Province Advanced Gold Mining Group (“EmE&
wRITEIHLESER") by Yunnan Gold Administration and Yunnan Gold
Industry Association. Luanling Mine was again granted the award of
“Enterprise with Outstanding Contribution” by the People’s Government
of Tantou County, Henan Province.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND CORPORATE PROSPECT
Continuous capacity expansion of our existing mines

There is great potential of production expansion for all of our 5 gold
mines. We will continue to expand production at our existing mines.
We will also expand the production capacity of our on-site processing
facilities to meet the planned expansion of our ore output at those mines.
For example, we are in the process of (i) constructing a new processing
facility at Jinxing Mine, (i) constructing two new processing facilities at
Luanling Mine and expanding the existing open-pit mining operation, (i)
expanding the existing open-pit mining operation at Mojiang Mine and (iv)
constructing two new processing facilities at Hengyi Mine.

Maximise the investment return by speeding up construction work
of the capacity expansion and improve the efficiency of exploration
work

In the backdrop of volatile gold market, maximising return of the
investment into the mines has become more important. We have started
and will further optimise our budget management, closely follow up
with project approval processes and construction work, and make
sure the project development timeline meet the schedule. Apart from
the Group’s internal professionals, we also consults external experts
for our cost-saving projects. With regard to geological exploration, the
Group will continue to carry out breakthroughs in exploration, by means
of strengthening its geological scientific research efforts, mobilising
inventories and drilling potential, with emphasis on reserves upgrade and
enhance output, so as to continue to maximise the result of geological
exploration.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

Continue to conduct further exploration to increase and upgrade
our resources and reserves

We have 4 exploration permits and 12 mining permits covering an
aggregate area of approximately 36.7 km® and 48.4 km?, respectively, in
Henan Province, Yunnan Province and Inner Mongolia. The area covered
by our exploration permits in Yunnan Province, based on the opinion
of an independent technical expert, is considered to have excellent
exploration potential with high probability to increase our resources with
additional drilling and/or trenching due to the multiple stacked vein style
of mineralisation which is known to extend at depth and the identification
and potential further discovery of blind veins in that area. The Group
will continue to look for breakthroughs of new resources identification
and implement the comprehensive utilisation of geological resources.
For Hengyi Mine, the Group will mainly focus on Hepingyakou and
Bianfushan areas and will use both trenching and diamond drilling for
exploration activities. For Mojiang Mine, diamond drilling will be used
for open cut and trenching for underground mining area for resources
exploration. For Jinxing Mine, the focus will be Xiepojing and Xingxingyin
areas and both trenching and diamond drilling will be used. For Luanliing,
trenching in the North area will be our focus to further increase resources
and reserves.

Continue our expansion through future acquisitions of high-quality
gold mining assets, with a particular focus on the central and
western regions of the PRC

We have achieved our rapid historical growth through a series of
acquisitions of high-quality gold mining assets. We believe there are
substantial growth opportunities in the growing but fragmented gold
mining industry in the PRC. We intend, therefore, to continue expanding
our business through further acquisitions of high-quality gold mining
assets, especially those which are underexplored and underdeveloped
but have potential to generate significant value through additional
exploration, production expansion and technological innovation, with
a particular focus on the central and western regions of the PRC. We
have a dedicated team that consists of experienced geological, finance
and legal personnel to identify and evaluate high-quality gold resources
for potential acquisition. In addition, we believe our recognition as a
“principal consolidator” in the gold mining industry by local governmental
authorities in Henan Province and Yunnan Province would also help
facilitating our continued expansion through acquisitions in those
provinces.
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Further improve production safety and environmental protection

We believe that operating in a safe and responsible manner is essential
to our success and future growth. We are operating in a green and low-
carbon manner relying on a strict environmental monitoring system. By
improving the level of safety and environmental management, the Group
continues to create its core eco-mining culture. Meanwhile, the Group
attach great importance to environmental safety issues. By focusing on
tailings, safety protection, zero-emission etc., the Company continues
with sustainable development at the minimal expense of environmental
damage, so as to achieve green, ecological and harmonious
development.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance and procedures to ensure integrity, transparency and
quality of disclosure in order to promote the ongoing development of the
best long term interest of the Company and enhance value for all the
shareholders.

The Company complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors (“Directors”) of
any non-compliance with the Model Code during the financial year ended
31 December 2013, and they have all confirmed their full compliance
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board. The major responsibilities of the Board include formulation
of strategic plans, adoption of corporate strategies, assessment of
investment projects, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operating
and financial performance, assessment and management of risk to which
the Group is exposed. The managements of the Group are responsible
for the execution of the Board’s decisions and day-to-day operation of
the Group.
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COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2013, the Board consists of 9 Directors, with 6
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Cham (Chairman), Mr. Dai Xiaobing
(Co-Chairman), Mr. Zhang Shuguang, Mr. Zhang Liwei, Mr. Chang
Yim Yang and Mr. Deng Guoli. 3 independent non-executive Directors,
namely Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick, BBS, pPhD, J.R, Mr. Chan Kin
Sang and Professor Xiao Rong Ge.

Save that Mr. Zhang Shuguang is the brother of Mr. Chang Yim Yang,
there are no financial, business, family or other material relationships
among members of the Board.

In 2013, the positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
were held separately. The role of Chairman was held by Mr. Lam Cham,
Co-chairman was held by Mr. Dai Xiaobing and Chief Executive Officer
was held by Mr. Zhang Shuguang. The segregation of duties of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear distinction in
the Chairman’s responsibility to manage and provide leadership for the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the
Company’s business.

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of independent non-
executive Directors with suitable professional qualifications, such as
expertise in accounting and financial management, in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. They actively bring their valuable
experience to the Board for promoting the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

As permitted under the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), the Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance for which Members of the Board and officers of the Company
do not have to bear any excess.
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The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-executive
directors) is 3 years. In accordance with the Articles, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, one third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, the number nearest to,
but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

In 2013, the Company held 8 Board meetings and 1 general meeting.
The attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings and general
meetings during the year is as follows:

EX(BREFTES) NERBA=
F o REBEARZRTE - RARBEFERR
BEXReL Zoz2HEESR(HRESF
WI=s=2F& - MARKEEBETIR
=P Z—Z ANBUAWmERE MEBLE
FELE=FWERET K-

RIZB—Z=F  ARRABITT\REFE
RN RERAE - FRENESNE
SEBNMBERAGNHFERMT

Meetings attended/held
HESERY BTEERY
Board General
meetings meetings
Name of Directors EEpg Exges BREAE
Mr. Lam Cham, Chairman WEEE 5 8/8 1/1
Mr. Zhang Shuguang, Chief Executive Officer RN LA TTEAAE 8/8 01
Mr. Zhang Liwei, Chief Financial Officer RO@ERSE  BIFaE 8/8 0/1
Mr. Dai Xiaobing, Co-chairman BNEEYE  BELE 8/8 0/1
Mr. Chang Yim Yang REBLE 8/8 0/1
Mr. Deng Guoli BB A5 A4 8/8 0/1

Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick, HEREEHK

BBS, PhD, J.P. HEALE - 151 XF#T 8/8 1/1
Mr. Chan Kin Sang PREEAEL A 8/8 0/1
Professor Xiao Rong Ge EESE 65 8/8 0/1

The minutes of Board meetings are prepared by the company secretary
of the meeting. The draft minutes are circulated to all Members of the
Board for their comments and the final version of the minutes is sent to
all Members of the Board for their records within a reasonable time after
the meeting. The minutes are also open for inspection by all Members of
the Board at the Company’s registered office.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT EEREERRRE

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional ARG BESD2HEBFET LR -
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The — LAZE[RE N 5B ¥R SR AN M R EE - R A A
Company has arranged in-house trainings for Directors in the form EZEBRITHFN S RAESREFZIIE
of seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of training £ - BESZLHRHEI - RIFZEFRME
received by Directors during the relevant period according to the records ~ RYFRREE * EENEAREZE X MEIIBE

provided by the Directors is as follows: LU
Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and
other relevant topics
TEER EERER
Name of Directors EEMS H b iaRE =R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Cham M5t v
Mr. Dai Xiaobing B/EEE v/
Mr. Chang Yim Yang REBS LA v/
Mr. Deng Guoli BB A 5 A4 v/
Mr. Zhang Liwei SRNMESTE v/
Mr. Zhang Shuguang SREEH ST v
Independent Non-Executive Directors By k#{TEE
Professor Wong Lung Tak, EREEHUX - HEHEE v
Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.P 1+ X F#+
Mr. Chan Kin Sang PR i A S A v
Professor Xiao Rong Ge EEJEI ¢ v/
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) under the Board. The Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Professor Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.R, Mr. Chan Kin Sang and Professor Xiao Rong Ge.
Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.R is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s duties are mainly to review the Company’s
financial reports, make recommendations on the appointment, removal
and remuneration of independent auditors and approve audit and audit-
related services, and supervise the Company'’s internal financial reporting
procedures and management policies.

At least two meetings of the Audit Committee will be convened annually
to review the accounting policies, internal control and the relevant
financial and accounting issues, so as to ensure fairness and accuracy of
the Company’s financial statements and other relevant information. The
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are prepared by the secretary
of the meeting. The draft minutes are circulated to the Committee
Members for comments and the final version of the minutes is sent to
the Committee Members for their records within a reasonable time after
the meeting. The minutes are also open for inspection by the Committee
Members at the Company’s registered office.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were two Audit
Committee meetings held to review the interim and annual financial
results and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures,
and internal control matters. All members of the Audit Committee have
attended all meetings during the year.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”). The Remuneration Committee consists of
two independent non-executive Directors, Professor Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick, BBS, phD, J.£ and Mr. Chan Kin Sang, and one executive Director,
Mr. Lam Cham. Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The Company has formulated written terms
of reference for the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and in
overseeing and evaluating remuneration packages of the Directors.
Its duties include making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. It takes into consideration factors such as salaries
and compensation packages paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of Directors. It also takes into account
whether the emoluments offered are appropriate to the duties and
performance of the respective individuals concerned and whether such
emoluments are competitive and sufficiently attractive to retain such
individuals.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was one Remuneration
Committee meeting held. All members of the Remuneration Committee
attended the meeting.

Competitive remuneration packages are structured to be commensurate
with individual responsibilities, qualification, experience and performance.

The remuneration of a Director is determined with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing market
situation. Details of the emoluments of Directors during the year ended
31 December 2013 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements of
this annual report. The emoluments paid to senior management during
the year ended 31 December 2013 were within the following bands:
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) under the Board. Members of the Nomination Committee
consists of two independent non-executive Directors, Professor Wong
Lung Tak, Patrick, BB8S, PhD, J.R. and Mr. Chan Kin Sang, and one
executive Director, Mr. Lam Cham. Mr. Lam Cham is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the following:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations on proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

° assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to comply with a
new code provision on board diversity. The policy aims to set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board to ensure that the Board has
the balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, knowledge and skills. In identifying suitable
candidates, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates with the
objective criteria with due regard of the benefits of diversity on the Board.
There was no addition to the Board after the new code provision took
effect.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was one Nomination
Committee meeting held. All members of the Nomination Committee
attended the meeting.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

Corporate Governance Committee

The Group has established a corporate governance committee (the
“Corporate Governance Committee”). The Corporate Governance
Committee consists of three executive Directors, Mr. Lam Cham, Mr.
Zhang Shuguang and Mr. Zhang Liwei. Mr. Lam Cham is the Chairman
of the Corporate Governance Committee.

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for the following:

° developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was one Corporate
Governance Committee meeting held. All members of the Corporate
Governance Committee attended the meeting.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and ensure that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of such
financial statements.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company, Messrs Crowe
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, with regard to their reporting responsibilities
on the Company’s financial statements is set out in the Auditor’s Report
on pages 64 to 65.
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AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors
(including any entity under common control, ownership or management
with the external auditors or any entity that a reasonable and informed
third party having knowledge of all relevant information would reasonably
conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or internationally) during the
year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:

¥ A BN

BHE-_Z—=%+-A=+—HItEE "
Bt A AR R INBZEAD (B IEE
A ESNEAZ SR S R — ML ) ~ R oK
B2 AEEFMEHBERNE=SE

I 3 HE T EL R R AR BB R IS P 2 B s B
B EREOMIE) 2B T

2013
—E-=

HK$’000

FHBxT

Audit services EZIRTE 2,500
Non-audit services IEEAZ RS

Interim review A HRZR B 550

Internal control review SRR 280

3,330

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities to maintain a sound and effective
internal control system of the Group to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets. The Group has established
guidelines and procedures for the approval and control of expenditure.
Operating expenditures and capital expenditures are subject to the
overall budget control and approval process prior to commitment.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee of the Company,
conducted the annual review of the effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal controls for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
review covered all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. There were no
significant control failings, weaknesses or significant areas of concern
identified during the year which might affect shareholders.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms. Yim Siu Hung, is responsible for facilitating
the Board process, as well as communications among Board members,
with shareholders and management. Ms. Yim’s biography is set out in
the “Biographical Details of the Directors and the Senior Management”
section on page 48. During the year, Ms. Yim took not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s annual general meeting and extraordinary general
meeting provide the principal channels of communication with its
shareholders. They provide opportunities for shareholders to share views
with the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

Under the Company’s Articles, the Board, on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company holding not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company by sending a written notice to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, shall convene an extraordinary general meeting to address
specific issues specified in such requisition of the Company within 21
days from the date of deposit of written notice. The same requirement
and procedure also apply to any proposal to be tabled at shareholders’
meetings for adoption.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s Principal
Place of Business in Hong Kong at Room 3107-9, Shun Tak Centre
West Tower, 200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (email:
info@cpmgroup.hk).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there is no change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Cham (##2), aged 55, was appointed as chairman of the
Board and executive director of the Company on 3 March 2011 and
27 January 2004, respectively. Mr. Lam is one of the founders of the
Company. He has over 20 years of experience in business management
and development and is primarily responsible for the Group’s overall
strategic planning and business management. Mr. Lam currently is
a member of the Yunnan Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Zhang Shuguang (FREE>), aged 44, was appointed as executive
director and Chief Executive Officer on 6 September 2011 of the
Company. Mr. Zhang holds a master degree in Engineering from Nippon
Institute of Technology and possesses the professions in mining field. Mr.
Zhang has over fifteen years of experience in mergers and acquisition
and business management. He is primary responsibility for the Group’s
acquisition strategies and operation management. Mr. Zhang is the
brother of Mr. Chang Yim Yang.

Mr. Zhang Liwei (5&k 7 #E), aged 35, was appointed as an executive
director and chief financial officer of the Company on 1 January 2012
and 12 June 2012 respectively. Mr. Zhang was most recently Senior Vice
President with Macquarie Capital. Mr. Zhang has 10 years’ experience in
providing investment-banking services to natural resource companies on
mergers and acquisitions, divestments, debt and equity capital raisings.
Throughout his career, Mr. Zhang has worked for various international
companies, such as N M Rothschild & Sons, Citigroup, HSBC and
Macquarie Capital. Mr. Zhang received his Bachelor degree in Economics
with First Class Honors from London School of Economics and Political
Science in United Kingdom.

Mr. Chang Yim Yang (3R &%), aged 51, was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 19 June 2008. Mr. Chang was awarded
post-graduate diploma by University of Shenzhen in International
Finance. Mr. Chang is experienced in mergers and acquisitions as well
as capital market operations. He is well versed in investment operations
in Mainland China and has more than twenty years of experience in this
industry. Mr. Chang is the brother of Mr. Zhang Shuguang.

44

25

HITES

MELE 555 PRR_E—F=
AZBER-_ZENF—A -+t HEZE
ABEESTENEKRARNITES - HELE
BARRNRIBIMWAZ — - FHEA_TZF
TEEENERLR  MEEEEAREE
CHEBEBREAEI N EBREIE - MILERR
AEFEBRHBEEEKE -

REBXELE 445 R-_T——FNAR
BEZE/ANRRMITESRRITHAEE -
REERAAATIEAREZ TIRIAL S
i - EEMBEXEEE - RAEFBTOF
HEBUBLMEXEELR  MTERER
SEZWBREREINEEEE - REL
RREGREZNS -

RAOMRE 355 DRR T ——F—
A—BMZZE—=—FA+-HEZTA
RAFITES LA BRE - RELZHE
BRBEARRENGE - REEEMBR
BRATRBIRERITRE TEERF 105
K BIEBIE  HEEE - BB
RARESH - RIBAEBER - RE
EBERRNESERLNT - EEEE  EZ
RITRERBEEARAERZEBE AR - RE
ERARBEGmBABUAKESRREESR R
LREBERS BT o

REBEE S1m R-FZT/\FXA
THAEZRERARBMITES - 5RELLE
FERIASBERERERMTEBEX
& RESBRIAR B RENEE - A
MABBEANKRERS  ERFTXEER
“TEFEIERR - REEARREBLLL
Z M o



Mr. Dai Xiaobing (&#/)E&), aged 46, was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 16 November 2009 and as Chief Executive
Officer on 21 January 2010. On 6 September 2011, Mr. Dai has resigned
as the Chief Executive Officer and was appointed as the Co-chairman
of the Company. Mr. Dai was awarded a PhD in Econometrics by Jilin
University School of Business (& # A2 £ 057). Mr. Dai is experienced
in the corporate finance sector as well as merger and acquisitions
and corporate structuring of companies in the PRC. He is also familiar
with the capital market in the PRC. Mr. Dai is an independent director
of Jiangxi Ganneng Co., Ltd. (I Faz&RERR D BR A F]) (Stock code:
000899), a company listed on the stock exchange of Shenzhen and
an executive director and chairman of the Board of Sino Oil and Gas
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 702), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Deng Guoli (BBl Fl), aged 48, was appointed as executive director
of the Company on 3 March 2011. Mr. Deng holds a bachelor’s degree
in Geology from East China Geological Institute, a Master degree in
Business Administration from the Management School of Xi An Jiao Tong
University (FAZ 2 A2 E IR ER). He is currently a senior geological
engineer. Mr. Deng worked in Geological Team 211 (Northwestern) of
China’s Nuclear Industry Authority (FFBI#Z TEE L ———E X
Fx) and had respectively held the positions of Geological Technician,
Assistant Engineer, Engineer and Senior Engineer, Project Technology
Supervisor and Project Supervisor. He also served as the Assistant to
Mine Manager at Shanxi Pangjiahe Gold Mine (5 74 &g 57 & &% = B
I#). Mr. Deng had long been engaging in the investigations for regional
mineral production, surveys, exploration, mine exploitation and gold
heap leaching. He has extensive experience and knowledge in the areas
of geological evaluation of mines, mine construction, mine selection and
production, and operational management. He was appointed as the
vice-president and chief engineer of the Group on 21 January 2010.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick (E& &), B85S, J.P, aged 66, was
appointed independent non-executive Director of the Company on 19
June 2004. Professor Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
in Hong Kong and Managing Practicing Director of Patrick Wong CPA
Limited. He is also a Chartered Secretary and a Certified Tax Advisor. He
has over 30 years’ experience in the accountancy profession. Professor
Wong was accorded Doctor of Philosophy in Business, was awarded a
Badge of Honour by the Queen of England, was appointed a Justice of
the Peace and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the Hong
Kong Government of SAR. He was appointed Adjunct Professor, School
of Accounting and Finance, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University from
2002 to 2013. Professor Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited, CC Land Holdings
Limited, Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited, Guangzhou Baiyunshan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited, Water Oasis Group Limited,
Real Nutriceutical Group Limited, National Arts Entertainment and Culture
Group Limited, Winox Holdings Limited and Excel Development (Holdings)
Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Kin Sang (Bf#24), aged 62, was first appointed as
independent non-executive Director on 19 June 2004. Mr. Chan is
currently the sole proprietor of Messrs. Peter K.S. Chan & Co., Solicitors
and Notaries. Mr. Chan has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1982. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor’s degree in laws in 1979. Mr. Chan was admitted as a notary
public in 1997 and as a China-appointed attesting officer in 2000. Mr.
Chan is currently a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr.
Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Luxking
Group Holdings Limited and non-executive director of Pan Hong Property
Group Limited. The shares of both companies are listed on Singapore
Stock Exchange Limited. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive
director of China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited and Tianjin TEDA
Biomedical Engineering Company Limited and a non-executive director
of Combest Holdings Limited. The shares of all of these companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Professor Xiao Rong Ge (H#% M), aged 65, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director and member of Audit Committee
of the Company on 21 January 2010. Professor Xiao obtained his
PhD in Professional Geology from the China University of Geosciences
(Beijing). He is currently a professor of Professional Geology and mentor
to doctoral students at the China University of Geosciences (Beijing).
Professor Xiao has long been conducting research work in the fields of
geology, mineral exploration and economic evaluation. He participated in
the fieldwork of geological inspection of metal minerals by an integrated
exploration team of the geological exploration company of the Ministry
of Metallurgical Industry of China, mainly at the regions of Langshan
mountain Bayan Obo, Manzhouli and Daxinganling of Inner Mongolia,
PRC. He also took part in the geological research work of the Three-River
Area of Yunnan and the system research of meso-cenozoic geological
minerals and sylvite and copper minerals in Yunnan. As a post-doctoral
researcher at the Institute of Geochemistry Chinese Academy of
Sciences, he engaged in geological geochemistry research, focusing
in research on the formation of meso-cenozoic sandstone-type copper
minerals. He is currently specialised in gold and silver deposits research,
and has splendid achievement in hydrothermal fluid and hydrothermal
sedimentary rock research. His monograph named “Mineralisation Rule
and Anticipation of Gold Minerals in the Innermost Part of Xiao Qin
Ling” {/NRIRFEERSSTEAIEREEKETE A was published in 2009.
Professor Xiao had engaged in the projects of the National Science
Foundation of China, basic technical research projects of the Department
of Technology, Ministry of Land and Resources, national geological
inspection projects, open laboratory projects on geochemistry of the
Chinese Academy of Sciences and related provincial projects of the
Department of Land and Resources and various mining enterprises
projects, and was awarded a Third Class Award of Technological
Progress by the Ministry of Geology and Mineral Resources, a First
Class Award and a Second Class Award of Technological Achievement
by the Ministry of Land and Resources. Professor Xiao had engaged in
consultant services for mining investment, valuation for financing, mining
rights valuation and technical inspection, and had conducted valuation of
mining resources for various mining enterprises.
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Senior Management

Mr. Zhou Yuliang (B R), aged 44, is vice president of the Group and
has joined the Group since 2008. Mr. Zhou holds a master’s degree in
finance from Hunan University. Prior to joining the Company, he worked
in financing departments for a few leading banks based in Shenzhen.
Prior to this he served for 6 years in a fund company specialised in
mining sector.

Mr. Wang Junxian (E£&%), aged 52, is the chief geological engineer
of the Group and has joined the Group since 2010. He graduated from
Chengdu University of Technology (Bk#3E TAZ) (formerly known as
Chengdu College of Geology (B #BihE ) majored in geology and
mining. Mr. Wang has engineer title. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang
worked for the Chinese People’s Armed Police Gold Force (F B Z =S
BBFx%) and Shanxi Tongguan County Weinan City Gold Mine (%% /& B8 &
B M ETE) as chief engineer and deputy general manager respectively.
Mr. Wang has more than 26 years experience in geology, mining, mine
processing, mining technologies and mine management.

Ms. Yim Siu Hung (BXf&4I), aged 49, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 12 June 2012. Ms. Yim holds a degree
in law and a degree in accountancy. She is a fellow member of both
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She has years of extensive
experience in the company secretarial sector and has worked for
international accounting and law firms and listed companies in Hong
Kong.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

Report of the Directors
EFERE

The Directors hereby submitting the annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set forth in note 18 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set
out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 66 and 67.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 208 and 209.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of change in
equity on pages 71 and 72 and in note 30 to the financial statements
respectively.

FIXED ASSETS

Particulars of the movements in fixed assets of the Group during the
financial year are set forth in note 14 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2013 are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Particulars of convertible bonds of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2013 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.
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WARRANTS

Particulars of warrants of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2013 are set out in notes 26 and 30(c) to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 30(b) to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Cham, Chairman

Mr. Zhang Shuguang, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Zhang Liwei, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Dai Xiaobing, Co-chairman

Mr. Chang Yim Yang

Mr. Deng Guoali

Independent non-executive Directors:

Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.P
Mr. Chan Kin Sang
Professor Xiao Rong Ge
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The service contract of Mr. Lam Cham was renewed for a fixed term
of three years commencing from 19 June 2013. The service contract
of Mr. Chang Yim Yang was renewed for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 19 June 2011. The service contract of Mr. Dai
Xiaobing was renewed for a fixed term of three years commencing from
16 November 2012. The service contract of Mr. Deng Guoli was renewed
on 3 March 2014 for a term of three years. Mr. Zhang Shuguang was
first appointed as executive Director on 6 September 2011 for a term of
three years. Mr. Zhang Liwei was first appointed as executive Director on
1 January 2012 for a term of three years. The service contract of each
of the independent non-executive Directors Professor Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.R and Mr. Chan Kin Sang was renewed for a term
of three years commencing from 19 June 2013. The service contract
of Professor Xiao Rong Ge as independent non-executive Director was
renewed for a term of three years commencing from 21 January 2013.

There is no specific clause in all the service contracts providing for the
amount of compensation in case of early termination. Each Director was
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meetings in accordance with the Articles. Pursuant to Article
87(1) of the Articles, Mr. Deng Guoli, Mr. Chan Kin Sang and Professor
Xiao Rong Ge shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and shall be eligible for re-election.

Other than as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

During the year, no consideration was provided to or receivable by third
party for making available the service of director or in any other capacity
while director.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent
non-executive Directors independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the Directors and chief
executives in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange are

as follows:

EERITHAZRRG 2
=

RZT—=F+ZA=+—H 2RI
BEBRNARR R EAREE (EERE
7 R EIEGRD ([ 85 R BREERD ) EXV
#) z Bty - R REST - AR
BESLPEERIEXVEET R8O EZ
RECHEARRA LB ez (B2
RERIEREF MBS
SR BEA RN TRE)
7 M EE R0 3 352 R 2 17 TE R E A
fERprtt B et < sk ¢ SRIBIRE ST AR
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HMEARRR SRBZFTZ ERmE NN T

Number of
underlying
shares held
Approximate under equity
Nature of Total percentage derivatives (d)
interest number of of interest Long/ BAR 674
Name of Directors and capacity the Shares B4z short position IARKEZ
BExpg EatERED LEnEt BOL ¥R/ %R HERAGHA ()
Mr. Lam Cham Corporate (a) 257,196,670 5.91% Long
e NSIIC) )
Personal (a) 7,400,000 0.17% Long 20,000,000
fELA () o)
Mr. Chang Yim Yang Corporate (b) 543,432,382 12.49% Long
RERG LA 27 (b) e
Personal (b) 119,730,000 2.75% Long 20,000,000
fEA (b) o)
Mr. Dai Xiaobing Personal 11,000,000 0.25% Long 20,000,000
B/ ERE fEA 1)
Mr. Zhang Shuguang Personal 10,300,000 0.24% Long 20,000,000
RENEE fEA e
Mr. Deng Guoli Personal - - - 20,000,000
BRI 55 A EPN
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Approximate

- CPM

Number of
underlying
shares held
under equity

Nature of Total percentage derivatives (d)
interest number of of interest Long/ URASTE
Name of Directors and capacity the Shares #A%ERE short position IAEEZ
EEng ERtER SR 13 48 8 Botk BE /%A HBERGEHEE ()
Professor Wong Lung Tak, Personal () 800,000 0.02% Long 3,000,000
Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.P. A () He
HEERE  HEHEE
féi— C K FHA
Mr. Chan Kin Sang Personal (c) 800,000 0.02% Long 3,000,000
PRIEA L4 fEA () e
Professor Xiao Rong Ge Personal (c) - - - 3,000,000
EEJE € fEA (c)

(@  Aswell Group Limited (“Aswell Group”) is a company beneficially owned as (@)  Aswell Group Limited ([ Aswell Group])
to approximately 29.4% by Mr. Lam Cham. Accordingly, Mr. Lam Cham is B—HEMNEEEERERL29.4%H#
taken to be interested in the Shares held by Aswell Group. mZAamEe Al MELXERRAER

Aswell Group P57 8B B #E AR ©
Apart from his indirect interests through Aswell Group, 7,400,000 Shares B i 1B Aswell Group FARZERN
are directly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lam Cham. MEZEEEZE R ETHEA 7,400,000 AKX
{/'\ °

() Lead Pride Holdings Limited (“Lead Pride”) is wholly-owned by Mr. Chang (b))  Lead Pride Holdings Limited ([ Lead
Yim Yang. Accordingly, Mr. Chang Yim Yang is taken to be interested in the PrideJ) HREGEEEEHESR - Bt -
Shares held by Lead Pride. RE 5w R A Lead Pride FTiF B

E’Jﬁxf’ﬁqﬂ AR o
Apart from his indirect interests through Lead Pride, 119,730,000 Shares R i 8 Lead Pride 5 & MmN
are directly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chang Yim Yang. Bkt EREREHRES 119,730, OOOHX
f&4n ©

€0  Mr. Chan Kin Sang, Professor Xiao Rong Ge and Professor Wong Lung  (¢) FREEE%RLE - BREHE REEREHE
Tak, Patrick are independent non-executive Directors. BHRBIIERNITES -

(d)  These represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of the share  (d) T34 R IR H 2 BERRES K& 2 R

options granted by the Company, the details of which are set out in the
sub-section entitled “Share Options” below.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company nor their associates, had
any interest in long position or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which required, pursuant to
the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a written resolution of the then shareholders passed on
18 September 2004.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to any executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors of the
Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters, service providers to the Group whom the Board considers,
in its sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group,
subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws (the “Participants”).

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on 18 September 2004, being the date on which the Share
Option Scheme was adopted.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”), unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from the
shareholders.
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At the Annual General Meeting held on 26 May 2011, the Company
obtained the approval from the shareholders to refresh the limit in respect
of the granting of share options under the Share Option Scheme and all
other share option scheme(s) up to 10% of the total number of Shares
in issue as at the date of approval of such refreshment by passing of an
ordinary resolution by the shareholders.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Share Option Scheme, the
maximum number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue from time to
time.

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total number of the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in
issue.

Offer of an option (“Offer”) shall be deemed to have been accepted by
any Participant (the “Grantee”) who accepts an Offer in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the option to which the
Offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and to have taken
effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of
the Offer duly signed by the Grantee together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the granting
thereof is received by the Company within such period as the Board may
determine and specify in the Offer.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during the period to be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion and notified by the Board to each
Grantee as being the period during which such option may be exercised
and in any event, such period shall not be longer than 10 years from the
date of offer (the “Option Period”). An option shall lapse automatically
and not be exercisable (to the extent not already exercised) on the expiry
of the Option Period.
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The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme
will be at least the highest of (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which
an offer is made by the Company to the Grantee (which date must be a
business day, “Offer Date”); (b) a price being the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the Offer Date;
and (c) the nominal value of the Share.

As at the date of issue of this annual report, the number of Shares in
respect of which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme was 260,100,000, representing
approximately 5.98% of the existing issued share capital of the Company.
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Details of the share options granted and remained outstanding as at

CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD
PREEEBERERERLT

31 December 2013 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:
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BEEETERE RERITENEREZ

B
Number of option shares
BRESRRHBE
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January 31 December
2013 Granted Lapsed  Exercised 2013
Exercise ZE-=F during during during —E-=F
Date of grant Price -A-H theyear  theyear  theyear T=A=1-H
REAH %8 HATE  FRRE  FRXR ERAR HRTE
HKS$
BT
Mr. Lam Cham 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
W “T——%tAZTNB
Mr. Dai Xiaobing 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
HEEE ZE——4tAZTNH
Mr. Chang Yim Yang 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
REGLE ZT——451tAZT/\H
Mr. Deng Guoli 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
HENEE —E——5+AZt/R
Mr. Zhang Shuguang 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
REREE ZE——4%tAZt/H
Professor Wong Lung Tak, 28 October 2011 1.51 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
Patrick, B8S, PD, J.P ZE—EtAZtN\A
BREYR  HEHEE
fat AT
Mr. Chan Kin Sang 28 October 2011 1.51 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
RigEEs —Z—5+AZt/R
Professor Xiao Rong Ge 28 October 2011 1.51 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
HREAR ZT——451tAZT/\H
Other senior management 28 October 2011 1.51 212,100,000 - (61,000,000) - 151,100,000
staff and employees “F—F+AZtN\A
EtERERABRES
Total & 7T 321,100,000 - (61,000,000) - 260,100,000
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The above share options are of an exercise price HK$1.51 per share with
the exercisable period from 28 October 2013 to 27 October 2017.

The share options granted are recognised in the financial statements.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing model after taking into accounts the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The contractual life
of the option is used as an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the Black-Scholes Option Pricing model.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the financial year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 36 of the notes to the financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the financial year.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD CP"
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, as far as known to the Directors, the following
persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had 5% or more interests in the shares or underlying shares in
respect of equity derivatives of the Company that would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

FERRK
W-ZE—=F+_"F=+—8 BESEFH
o BARNEREBEES KR KDIZE 336
BEENSLRMALEE  BRAQRES
TTERABEL SN » THIATRARD B 5%
RETET BB, R #A 5%k A L#
o MZEEEAREESKBEKLIE
XVEBE 2 & 37 &b 2 ATE MARRHEE -

Long position in the shares of the Company RKPABRD TR
Nature of Number of
interest ordinary shares Total
Name of shareholders and capacity of the Company Percentage
L ELd N
REEH REt ZERRHYE BEA
1. Munsun Assets Management Ltd. Corporate (Note 1) 882,026,000 20.27%
EE (KEE1)
2. Lead Pride Holdings Limited Corporate (Note 2) 543,432,382 12.49%
EE (FEE2)
3. The Bank of New York Mellon Corporate (Note 3) 262,067,909 6.02%
Corporation EE (FEE3)
4. Aswell Group Limited Corporate (Note 4) 257,196,670 5.91%
EE (KisE4)
5. Market Vectors ETF — Market Vectors Corporate (Note 5) 253,888,000 5.84%
Junior Gold Miners ETF EE (KtEEs5)
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Notes:

Munsun Assets Management Ltd. in its capacity as an investment manager
held 882,026,000 shares, of which 423,546,000 shares and 350,214,000
shares (representing 9.74% and 8.05% of the issued shares of the
Company) were held by its wholly owned subsidiaries, Munsun Umbrella
Trust-Munsun Stable Growth Fund (of which TMF (Cayman) Ltd. acts as
Trustee for 263,424,000 shares) and Munsun Global Mining Investment
Fund LP respectively.

Lead Pride Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chang
Yim Yang.

The Bank of New York Mellon had long position in 262,067,909 shares and
261,891,909 shares in lending pool. Since The Bank of New York Mellon
is wholly owned by The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, The Bank
of New York Mellon Corporation is also taken to be interested in the shares
held by The Bank of New York Mellon pursuant to the SFO.

Aswell Group is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability which is legally and beneficially owned as to 29.4% by Mr.
Lam Cham and as to 30% by Mr. Lim Wa (who is also beneficially interested
in 7,800,000 shares and options for subscription of 2,000,000 shares of
the Company).

Market Vectors ETF — Market Vectors Junior Gold Miners ETF is managed
by Van Eck Global.

Saved as disclosed above in this section, as at 31 December 2013,
the Company has not been notified of any other persons (other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the

SFO.
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The Bank of New York Mellon¥f &
262,067,909 f& % 17 #f & K2 261,891,909
A& AT AR5 AR o BBF The Bank of New
York Mellon # The Bank of New York
Mellon Corporation & #H & BB IEE
% M HAE &5 - The Bank of New York
Mellon Corporation 71 4% &1 The Bank
of New York Mellon £ R (7 4 155 1
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Global B -
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the financial year ended
31 December 2013, and they have all confirmed their full compliance
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 34 to 43 for
details.

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors and their respective associates had any interest
in a business which competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the
Cayman Islands.

- CPM
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Report of the Directors
EFEWE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

- the largest supplier 27%

—  five largest suppliers totally 66%
Sales

—  the largest customer 22%

—  five largest customers totally 70%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year.

COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments of the Group are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of pledge of assets of the Group are set out in note 28 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENCIES

Save as disclosed in note 37(j) to the financial statements in relation to
the Group’s environmental contingencies, the Group did not have any
other contingent liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in note 40 to the
financial statements.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD CP"
PREEEBERERERLT

AUDITOR = ELEm

CCIF CPA Limited had acted as auditor of the Company for the year RESEFEIEBABRARNEE_S
ended 31 December 2011 and retired on 25 May 2012. Crowe Horwath ——&F+ZHA=+—HIEFEEERAF
(HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe Horwath”) has been appointed as auditor of HIZEMIT AR —_E——FAA-_+HHR
the Company with effect from 25 May 2012. F-BHBEE(EDL) SFAMEEAER

~AA((BEEEDER-_FT—-FHA
“+tRHBEZRERNRARHAZEED

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December B EZE-_ZE—Z—F K _ZT—=F+=A4
2012 and 2013 were audited by Crowe Horwath who retire and, being =+—HIEFEZHFEMEHREARE S
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual &% - ESEEERRBAFRAGER
general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be submitted to the FHERER » WA ER RFEEERE A7

e

forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Crowe Horwath as A RITZEAN o BHEE E 05 E AR N A8

auditor of the Company. Bz —BRBREREERRBFRE
RE o

On behalf of the Board REEFE

Lam Cham FE

Chairman Az

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014 8 ZE—mWE=A=+NH
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB EE

N\ Crowe Horwath.

To the Shareholders of China Precious Metal Resources Holdings
Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 66 to 207 which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2013 and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS™ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014

Leung Chun Wa

Practising Certificate Number P04963

cPM
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEEmR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE - T —
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA #5517 )

=F+-A=t—HILHFE

2013 2012
—EB—=F —ET——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ihE=2 FHExT THET
Revenue g 4(a) 1,562,409 1,626,023
Cost of sales HE AN (705,249) (586,698)
Gross profit EF 857,160 1,039,325
Other revenue HAA 5 8,755 20,322
Other net gain Hah W 558 5 1,390 18,107
Selling and distribution costs $HE Ko tEAk AN (13,380) (11,917)
Administrative expenses THEHR (189,362) (184,646)
Profit from operations #RER A 664,563 881,191
Finance costs B RS AR AN 6(a) (334,510) (218,872)
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 6 330,053 662,319
Income tax FriS 7 (148,670) (217,241)
Profit for the year attributable AAREE AEMN
to owners of the Company FERA 10 181,383 445,078
HK cents HK cents
AL &AL
Earnings per share BREF 12
Basic BN 4.17 12.2
Diluted e 4.17 12.2

The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD
FEREEERERERAT

cPM

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EWER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars JAZ ¥ 51|7R )

—ZF+ZRA=t+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E-= —T——fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
BsE FET FAT
Profit for the year FERR 181,383 445,078
Other comprehensive FEHMEE
income/(loss) for the year W (E5E)
(net of tax) (BRBEE)
Items that may be reclassified HERJGEERT D HE
subsequently to profit or loss: EEmIEA -
Exchange differences on Ny el
translation of financial ZPER =58
statements:
Exchange difference arising FEEACIERZXE
during the year 103,143 (590)
Reclassification adjustment BREERNTHEIE 18(d)
relating to a subsidiary RNAElZ B EARE
deregistered during the year (5,630) -
97,513 (590)
Available-for-sale financial asset: AHEESMEE ¢
Reclassification adjustment FEHEHNE
relating to available-for-sale CRIEEBNOEAR
financial asset disposed of
during the year - 28,592
- 28,592
97,513 28,002
Total comprehensive income for the year RATEE AL
attributable to owners of the Company FEZHENRELE 278,896 473,080

The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR &

As at 31 December 2013 R=—ZE—=F+_-_A=+—AH
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA #5517 )

The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements.

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ihE=2 FET FET
Non-current assets FREEE
Intangible assets B EE 13 6,243,418 6,343,910
Fixed assets EEEE 14 2,220,731 1,411,670
Construction in progress EETRE 15 1,025,844 581,700
Deposits paid for gold mining BB EERTE SR PR ERE
and exploration rights Fritize 16 571,361 433,649
Deposits paid for fixed assets ETEEMNIRS 17 57,048 54,325
Other deposits Efbire 38,046 9,781
10,156,448 8,835,035
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 109,499 90,195
Trade and loans and other JEWBR R R B A K&
receivables, deposits H bR -
and prepayments R MIERRIE 20 469,759 196,103
Pledged bank deposits BIRIFIRITIFK 21 458,340 84,460
Cash and cash equivalents HeNIESEEY 22 522,285 100,193
1,559,883 470,951
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables FE S BR 30 K Eo A FE < R 23 322,063 472,664
Tax payable JER IR 36,466 106,875
Bank and other borrowings RITREME K 24 1,953,500 422,583
Convertible bonds R ES 25 - 123,947
Derivative financial instruments TSR TE 26 35,668 -
2,347,697 1,126,069

FT75EFE 207 Az WiEBAMIEHRE 2 —
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR

As at 31 December 2013 R=ZE—=F+=-A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars JAZ ¥ 51|7R )

2013 2012
—E2—= —ET——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
BsE FExT FHTT
Net current liabilities REBAEFE (787,814) (655,118)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER 9,368,634 8,179,917
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREME R 24 1,654,258 1,294,888
Convertible bonds Al AR E S 25 1,015,839 -
Derivative financial instruments TETsmI A 26 118,539 156,476
Non-current payables JER BN IAE 27 - 447,756
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBAE 29(a) 657,151 675,729
3,445,787 2,574,849
NET ASSETS BEEFE 5,922,847 5,605,068
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R R f#E 30
Share capital A& K 543,841 543,841
Reserves His 5,379,006 5,061,227
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE RATEEA
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY PE{hRES 45 5,922,847 5,605,068

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on KEZFEN _T—NF=A -+ N \HZE

28 March 2014, WHFAIEE o
Mr. Lam Cham Mr. Zhang Shuguang
ML REXSKE
Director Director
EF EF
The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements. EI5EF07THEZMTABERT B RE 2
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Statement of Financial Position
B EA S 2=

As at 31 December 2013 R=—ZE—=F+_-_A=+—AH
(Expressed in Hong Kong doHars LA%M?'J/T\)

2013 2012
—E—= —ZE——
No:[e HK$’000 HK$ 000
M FHET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NNV E 18 5,084,898 4,642,798
Deposit paid for fixed assets mETETEEM NIZS 17 3,162 3,162
T 5,088,080 | - 4,645,960
Currentassets wEEE 0
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE S 20 392,420 235,454
Other receivables, deposits and HipElWEoE - me Rk
prepayments TEAS FRIE 20 550 619
Pledged bank deposits EEIRIRI TR 21 35,911 15,600
Cash and cash equivalents RENIREEEY 22 6,713 6,906
e 435,594 | 258,579
Current liabilities wEeeE 00|
Amounts due to subsidiaries ANl E NG 23 52,745 42,400
Other payables Hub e IE 23 12,337 17,160
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EME R 24 140,400 -
Convertible bonds AR ES 25 - 123,947
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmMITA 26 35,668 -
e 241,150 | 183,507
" Netcurrentassets k- v-3: - S 194,444 | 75,072
' Total assets less current liabilities mEERAHEE 2800 | 5282504 | . 4,721,032
' Non-current liabilities knmE®E |
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EAME R 24 - 278,121
Convertible bonds nlARRE S 25 1,015,839 -
Derivative financial instruments TSR T A 26 118,539 156,476
S 1,134,378 | 434,597
CNETASSETS aEsE 00| an14s8126| 4,286,435
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B @& 30
Share capital A& R 543,841 543,841
Reserves HiE 3,604,285 3,742,594
TOTALEQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE xAREEA |
T0 OWNERS OF THE COMPANY R4 5 4,148,126 4,286,435
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on &KEEER - Z—WNF=A -+ /\BiH
28 March 2014. W EFATEE M o
Mr. Lam Cham Mr. Zhang Shuguang
M EE REX KL
Director chector
EE

FISEFE07TEZHIBATERER 2

—&btn ©

The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HAEREBX

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE =T —=F+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars JAZ ¥ 51|7R )

Convertible

Warrants  bond equity
Share Share Statutory reserve reserve Capital  Exchange Retained Total
capital premium reserves AREE  TERES reserve reserve profits equity
& RBEE  iERE % EEEE  EAEE  EXBE  REEN  EREE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T TEn TEn Thn TEn Thn Tén T TEn

(note 30() ~ (note 30(d)i) (ote 30(c)v)  (note 30(c)  (hotes25&  (note 30()l)  (note 30(cli)
30(div)
(Fstop)  (BaEdoon) (FE3odnd)  (MESol)  (WosR  (WEE0wm) (R 3o
30

At 1 January 2013 R-Z-zf-f-A 543,841 4,299,250 53,763 1,260 6,877 85,207 158,438 456,352 5,605,068
Changes in equity for 2013 ~ —E-=£2EESE:
Profi for the year EREn - - - - - - - 181,383 181,383
Other comprehensive income FEAMRENE

for the year - - - - - - 97,513 - 97,513
Total comprehensive income FRrEYRSE

for the year - - - - - - 97,513 181,383 278,89
Equity-settled share-based RS 2 RHEH

payments ] - - - - - 3217 - - B2A7
Issue of convertible bonds EAARRES - - - - 2,007 - - - 2207
Redemption of convertiole bonds BB ATk B4 - - - - (6877) - - 5,336 (1,541)
Appropriation of safety BAR2EEES

production fund - - 15,133 - - - - (15,133) -
Utlisation of safety production fund  BEZ 24 EES - - (12,445) - - - - 12,445 -
Appropriation of statutory e

surplus reserve - - 60,154 - - - - (60,154) -
At 31 December 2013 W-8-zf&

TZBZt-H 543,841 4,299,250 116,600 1,250 2,207 123,514 255,951 580,229 5,922,847
The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements. FET75EFE207 B M BAMB®RKZ —
&fn o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FAEREREBX

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE T —=F+=_A=+—HBILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA #5517 )

Convertible
Warrants Fair  bond equity
Share Share  Statutory reserve value reserve Capital  Exchange  Retained Total

capital  premium  reserves  RREE  reseve TERRES  reseve  reserve profits equity
RE  BOBE  iERE R LTERE  EEEE  EAER EXRGE  REER ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Titn T T T Fitn T Thr Tin Fitn Fitr

(note 30(b))  (note 30(0)()) (note 30(d)iv)  (note 30(c) (note 30(d)(vi)  (notes 25 &  (note 30(0)()  (note 30(cHi)
30
(M sop) (Hisodi) (Hatsom) — (Metao) (Metsoed)  (HEE25R (HEtsoii) (MeEsoli)
30

At 1 January 2012 R=E--%-5-H 416,461 2,932,048 40,695 1,250 (28,592) 12,378 13,170 159,028 11274 3557712
Changes inequity for 20122~ —E-—EVEESEH:
Proft for the year EREN - - - - - - - - M5018 445078
Other comprenensive income EFEMRENG

for the year - - - - 28,592 - - (590) - 28,002
Total comprehensive income FERENGEE

for the year - - - ) - - (o0 445078 473,080
New shares issued for settlement 5% (& 45 RE 3108

of an unsecured payable Bk

fnote 300l (HE300)0) 18992 201,008 - - - - - - - 20000
New shares issued for acouision ~ SLUENER

of subsidiaries (note 30(o)i) R

(3 30()i) 108,388 1,166,258 - - - - - - - 1274546

Equity-settled share-based WS RIER

payments i - - - - - - 2127 - - 72,121
Appropriation of safety BRR2EEES

production fund - - 14,680 - - - - - - 14,680
Transaction costs attributable o Z{THRIEETZHA

issue of new shares - (64) - - - - - - - (64
Redemption of convertible bonds BRIk E% - - - - - (5,501) - - - (5,501)
Utlisation of safety production fund  BEZ 2 4EES - - (1612 - - - - - - (1612)
At 31 December 2012 -

TZB=1-H 543841 4,299,250 53,763 1,250 - 6,877 86,297 158,438 456,352 5,605,068
The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements. ET75EFE 207 Bz M BARMBHREKZ —
B e
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A =
FEEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE =T —=F+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars JAZ ¥ 51|7R )

2013 2012
—E-=F —EF——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B EE FER FAET
Operating activities KRR
Profit before taxation R A A 330,053 662,319
Adjustments for: FE
— Amortisation of intangible assets - EREAEEH 6(c) 253,343 199,937
— Depreciation and amortisation of - BB ETE R
fixed assets 6(c) 89,393 68,740
— Finance costs - MR AAR 6(a) 334,510 218,872
— Equity-settled share-based payments - LRSS E 2 R B 6(b) 38,217 72,127
— Increase in safety production fund -EMTEEEES - 13,068
— Interest income - FLEMA 5 (2,654) (509)
— Dividend income from -t EeREECREBRA 5
available-for-sale financial asset - (11,685)
— Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary - FHENB ARz WS 5 (5,630) -
— Gain on disposal of fixed assets - PEETEEZ M 5 - (13)
— Gain on disposal of available-for-sale -HEqHEESmEEZKE 5
financial asset - (18,035
— Waiver of other payables - PR EAEFRIA 5 (1,519) -
Changes in working capital: EELSEE
Increase in inventories FEE (19,304) (52,178)
Increase in trade and loans and other FEUSBR 70 B B SR A N E b fE U FR I
receivables, deposits and prepayments B4 RIERIBE N (138,716) (44,754)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FERTBR 3R R A FE S 3R0B
other payables CRi) /480 (150,417) 164,088
Cash generated from operations RETHEEZERS 727,276 1,271,981
Tax paid ERIE
- PRC income tax paid - BRPEMER (264,442) (271,837)
Net cash generated from RETEEE CESTFHE
operating activities 462,834 1,000,144
The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements. ET75EFE207 B M BAMBHRKZ —

#BD
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,.vafﬁﬁ/mE%

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE - T —
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA #5517 )

E+-A=+—AILER

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B3 FHT FHET
Investing activities RETE
Payment for purchase of fixed assets EEETEEMNK (20,455) (15,919)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HERBFEEEMSHIE - 32
Payment for construction in progress ERITEMNK (1,253,264) (1,074,895)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets & A& E 3 (66,895) -
Deposits paid for gold mining B R R R
and exploration rights Ffie 4 (98,063) (349,809)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits paid REEEEM RS
for fixed assets gm) /m (2,723) 39,305
Increase in other non-current deposits HiIEmEN RS (28,265) -
Interest received B HFLE 2,654 505
Net cash outflow from acquisitions of R B AR 2 REm L FEE
subsidiaries 33 - (5,357)
Net proceeds from disposal of HEHEESHEREY
available-for-sale financial asset SR IBF 58 - 165,412
Dividend income from available-for-sale AtHESRMEE 2R BIA
financial asset - 11,685
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFTAZESTFE (1,467,011) (1,229,037)
Financing activities REEE
Net proceeds from issuance of REBITABERES
convertible bonds Z S RIBFRE 989,661 -
Proceeds from bank and RIT R EAM B R ATIS KB
other borrowings 3,255,347 1,273,822
Repayment of bank and EERITTREMER
other borrowings (1,585,343) (553,663)
Payment for early redemption of 12 FHE Ol AT AR B A K
convertible bonds (125,000) (100,000
Repayment of non-current payables B IEmEEr A (421,177) (100,000)
Transaction cost for new share issued BETHRID 2 2 HHA - (64)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI T T I 0 (373,880) (45,424)
Finance costs paid [SENEZEID%N (320,925) (232,477)
Net cash generated from BMETHELECHSFE
financing activities 1,418,683 242,194
Net increase in cash and ReERBRESEEY
cash equivalents B nFEE 414,506 13,301
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—AZRER
at 1 January ReEEY 99,190 86,962
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXgH X8
changes 8,589 (1,073)
Cash and cash equivalents R+-—B=+—HZzHEEK
at 31 December HeEEY 22 522,285 99,190

The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD CP"
FEREEERERERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R ER R AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The
address of its registered office and principal place of business are
disclosed in the corporate information section of the annual report.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are
principally engaged in mining and processing of gold ores and sale
of gold products and providing financing services to customers
under finance lease and factoring arrangements in The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) during the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting year of the Group and the Company. Note
3 provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from the initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting years reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS $R IR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated SASEE SR » Br BAFTHESN)

2.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b)Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except derivative financial
instruments that are carried at fair value. ltems included in the
financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong
Kong is Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and that of its subsidiaries
in Mainland China is Renminbi (“RMB”). For the purposes of
presenting the consolidated financial statements, the Group has
adopted Hong Kong dollars as its presentation currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD CP"
FEREEERERERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R ER R AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTHBEXRw

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued) (b) IR 2 mBLE A (@)

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 37.

In preparing the financial statements, the Company’s directors
have considered the future liquidity of the Group. The Group
generated a consolidated net profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$181,383,000 for the year ended 31 December
2013, but, as at that date, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$787,814,000. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast a doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Nevertheless, the
directors are of the opinion that the Group will be able to finance
its future working capital and financial requirements given that:

(i) One of the principal banks of the Group granted three-year
loan facilities with an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB1.5 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$1.9 billion)
to the Group during the year, of which approximately RMB1
billion (equivalent to approximately HK$1.3 billion) has not
been utilised as at 31 December 2013 and up to the date of
approval of these financial statements;

(i) Two of the Company’s substantial shareholders have agreed
to provide financial support as is necessary to enable the
Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS $R IR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated SASEE SR » Br BAFTHESN)

FESITEEE @)
(b) A FE 3R 3R 2 R B EZE (1)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.
(b)Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

78

(i) Based on a cash flow forecast prepared by the Group’s
management for the twelve months ending 31 December
2014, the Group will be able to generate adequate cash
flows from its continuing operations.

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate
to prepare the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 on a going concern basis. The financial
statements have not reflected any effects of adjustments if the
Group was unable to continue to operate as a going concern.

(c) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

2())(i))-
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD CP"
FEREEERERERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R ER R AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTEHER @
d)() B8t

(d)(i) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for the control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition-
date fair values, except that:

— a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination and the potential tax effects of temporary
differences and carryforwards of an acquiree that
exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the
acquisition are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 12 Income Tax;

— assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

WHEEBIRAWEEEAR - %
BatPERZRERATE
8 - Mat B ARARERR
HERZEE  AKBERBKE
TREGEAEEZ BBENASE
BN IR )T 2 R
112 IR IR A B A E
mE - ARWBEBZERBER
EAERREREPHER

YRS B R - FrUE 2 AT Rl
BENMPHE BRETREE
HEI A FEMHER - LTS
SLERSM -

- BEXRBAHTPUBEER
AFERESI B ELERIA
BEXBERNIE BB
T4 3 B O U 5| B
BHESZENGE Z2E
ERBRE  RELG
EHFE 1258 [ PSR

RRGHE

- BHEBRFLHMESL
ZEESRRKBELEES
EAF19R [ EER/A ]
MR LA E

- BEBRWEE T AR &
BE o RAKEPTEI L (A
ERA U BB 77 LA RS 10 2 A%
ZHE) B A B ST Bk
BERZAEIBATA
AU EE B IR BB TSR
HFEAFE 25 [ AP X
HIFE: &

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —Z—=FFf 79




Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS $R IR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated SASEE SR » Br BAFTHESN)

2.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)(i) Business combinations (Continued)

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that HKFRS.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or another measurement basis required by
another HKFRS.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD CP"
FEREEERERERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R ER R AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESHEE@m
d)(i) RSB

(d)(i) Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e., the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if those interests
were disposed of.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated SASEE SR » Br BAFTHESN)

2.

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d)(i) Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

(d)(ii) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of business less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

2.

FESTHER @
d)(i) EHE6tum

WEBE G2 P aFRER
BHBELEZBERREART
A - BIARSEEHRERTKER
B¥E 7 1R B BRI 2R - AE R
REEGNFEHR(R LX)
TNHE - REREINEER
BfE - URBRREBEHER
EMEAARETEZ B EE
RBFE L FHEABIAAAE 2
&R

(d) (i) &

BERKRNATHER

() PABBREZRFE R
U EETT R PG (AR IR
Rz ©8 0 MAKHE
AR A 2 R 77 Ak
ZAFEZEM 8

(i) 5 9 B o 5
BErAHAEERAEY
F AT B o

) AR () - HEE AR
4 PO A T LA 2 k2 o

B R UE S 75 B RER A
AERRFHREBE(IME)
DB ©



CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R ER R AE
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTHBEXRw

(d)(ii) Goodwill (Continued) (d) (i) BHE @)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. If some or all of the goodwill allocated to a cash-
generating unit was acquired in a business combination
during the current annual period, that unit shall be tested
for impairment before the end of the current annual period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On the disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2.

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d)(iii) Acquisition of assets through acquisition of subsidiaries

Where acquisition of a group of assets through acquisition
of subsidiaries does not constitute a business, identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed will be identified
and recognised individually. The cost of the Group shall be
allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
The accounting policies in measuring these assets and
liabilities subsequent to the initial recognition are set out in
the respective notes. Such transactions do not give rise to
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.

(e) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i)

(ii)

Mining rights

Mining rights with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
loss (see note 2())(ii)). The mining rights are amortised over
the estimated useful lives of the mines, in accordance with
the production plans of the mines concerned, by using the
unit of production method based on the actual production
volume over the estimated total proved and probable
reserves of the gold mines.

Exploration rights and assets

Exploration rights and assets are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Exploration rights and assets include
the cost of acquiring exploration rights, topographical
and geological surveys, exploratory drilling, sampling
and trenching and activities in relation to commercial and
technical feasibility studies.

Exploration and evaluation costs include expenditure
incurred to secure further mineralisation in existing ore
bodies as well as in new areas of interest. Expenditure
incurred prior to accruing legal rights to explore an area is
written off as incurred.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

(i) Exploration rights and assets (Continued)

When it can be reasonably ascertained that an exploration
property is capable of commercial production, exploration
and evaluation costs capitalised are transferred to either
mining structures or mining rights and depreciated/
amortised by the unit of production method based on the
proved and probable mineral reserves. Costs incurred
for exploration which can be directly attributable to the
development of mining structures are transferred to mining
structures when the exploration reaches the stage of
commercial production. All other costs will be transferred to
mining rights. Exploration rights and assets are written off to
profit or loss if the exploration property is abandoned.

(f) Fixed assets

Fixed assets, other than constru